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Claremont—Past and Present

THE Yillage of Cloremont with n popula-
tion of approximately five hundred, is
situnted in the extreme north of Pickering
Township. Ontario County, about thirty
miles morth-vast of Toronto, on the Cann-
dinn Pacific Railway., Long before it be-
came a village, Joseph and Joshua Wixon,
of Engiish descent, coming from New York,
U's.A.. were the first ploncer settlers of the
vicinity, =settling on the enst and west side
of the Brock Read. north of the ninth con-
eesdior. It is said that Joacph cleared about
four hundred acres on the west spide, De-
Twern the ninth concession and the townlina
of Uxbddge. He built his home just north
of where the rond bends to the east, half
way between the four corners of the village
apd the present wailway station. His
fether Joheua took up Innd an the east side of the Brock Road,
his nroperty extending from the C.P.R. on the north to the ninth
conceszion on the south and ralf a mile east. It is believed that
*their dauchter Rath (Mrs. Sylvanns Sharrand), was the first
white child born in the rorthern part of Pickering Townsip,
(G, M. Forsyth's farm.) The land on the south-west cornor of
the corners was oviginally owned by John Hamiiton and that cn
the south-enst by Alexander Spears,
The Cournge of the Moncers.

It must have required considerable courage to settle with
(heir familior in o new eountry sveh ns Cannda was ot that time,
there being no one to welcome them, and no elearance large
crough to build their futuce homes. There were no saw-mills
{iom which to obtain lember, no stores to furnish them with
fooad, elothing, and ether necessitles, no doctor to call In time
of sickness, and no minister to preach the Gospel, except on
rove oceasions, Thelr homes were built of logs (walls, floor
and reaf), a team of oxen being used to kaul the fallien timbers;
their ferniture was made with the axe, saw, draw-knife and
hammer; thelr food was principally gnme and fish; and their
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clothing was almost ex¢lusively home-made, The spinning-
wheel and loom were common articles of furnitura, For many
years the grain was pounded into flour in the hollow of a hard-

wood stump.
The First Municipal Meeling.

There is on record that a municipal meeting waa held in 1811,
where the officers for the township were chosen. Joseph Wixon -
and his brother-in-law were appointed to represent the north
of Pickering Township. We have no outstanding records of the
village untl] in the eavly 1830%. About that time the immi-
grants were arviving in Canada at the rate of from 30,000 to
40,000 a vear. It wos o journey by sailing vessel of twelve to
thirteen weeks from the United Kingdom to Quebec. From
Quebse the immigrants were trensferred by small boats to
Montreal and again their bundles and hide-covered trunks were
loaded on Durham boats for the journey up the St. Lawrence
from Montreal to Kingston. They could then go either by boat
or stage coach te Muddy York. For about ten years the
population increased rapidly — the lands were quickly being
cleared and settled, nnd it is said that during that decade thera
was more rapid and extensive development than at any eother
Ltinte.

Farly Families.

Many of the families settled in Pickering Township, In 1835
the Michells, Tracys and Gosticks came to Canada taking up
land between the elghth and ninth concesslons of Pickering.
W. H, Michell, having n businesz edueation, did most of the
conveyancing for the settlers which necessitated walking all the
way to Toronto for the registration of the diferent documents.
FEe always carried a sword cane for protection. He became the
firat reeve of the township on the organization of the municipality
in 1830, For n number of vears he resided on his homestead,
then eame to the village where he gontlnued his eonveyancing

business till he Jost his eyesight.
The First Merchants,

John €. Michell was the pionesr mevchant of Claremont
neighbourhood. In 1844 he commenced business a hall mile
south of the four cornerz on the east gide of Brock Road where
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he dispensed of his wares for a number of years. In 1847 on
the south-wesl corser of the intersection, the stone building at
present occupied by Alfred Mole, was erected by Johm Hamil-
ton and leased to Thomas Noble who dealt in groceries and
ather wares. The plaee was then spoken of as Noble's Corners.

Hotel History.

About the same time a log hotel was constructed and operated
by Me. O°Brien, which was later purchased by Mr. Dowswell,
Just a few years later Mr, Dowswell deemed it advisable, in
order 1o supply the needed accommodation, to replace the old
butlding with the lavger frame stiucture which he lived in Tor
a number of years until his death. Since that time it hod many
proprictaors and remolnded standing until lost summer (1087)
when it was destroyed by fire, at which time it was owned by
M. Thoemas Sandersati,

Claremont - Named="oat  Olilee  Started.

Ar vet the hamlet had no Post Olee. The community, think-
ing they could no Jonger do without such a necessary Institution,
began the consideration of o sultable name, for the place had
never had an official appellation.  Clavemaont, ns suggested by
W, H. Michell, wnz finally chosen, after Clérmont in France.
‘where hid carly aneeaters bud lived, In 1861 iL wos so named
by appeintment of Queen Vietorin,  Mr. T, Noble became the
first Postmaster nnd held the positlen il 1853 when Willlam
and John MeNab from Scotland, bought out Mr. Noble's businesa
and John MeXNab became the next Postmaster and held the
position for forty-lour years, In 18565 or L8GG, the partnership
was severed, Willlam's place being taken by another brother,
Dunenn. The fellowing yenr they purchnsed land aseross Lhe
road and moved a frame building from Greenwood, where they
carrvied on business till 1875, This building still standa and to-
day is used as & Post Office.

Storckeeping and Shopping,

In 1851 John C. Michell built the new brick store now oe-
cupied by A. W. Wilkinson and theee transactad his business
until his retivement when the MeNab= bought it in 1855 to ke
care of thelr Encrcasiog tsme. L wor a strenuous business,
there being no ailway mearer than Pickering village from
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where all their merchandise wos hauled by horse vehieles
Dusiness was largely transacted on twelve months" eredit,
They handled all kinds of farm produce, Women cime to the
store drossed in their sunbonnets and long white aprons, full-
sathered to the belt that fastened al the back with huge bows,
They brought butter, cggs, lard, tallow, tallow camidles, maniz:
sugar, cured meats, yarn, and homespun elath,  {Many a blankel
and bedspread are still in the community.) They were ex-
changed for wrocerics, ote.

A wapon load of ezps was hauled to Toronto every few days,
and in one seazon it 4 said soven tonm of bulter were sent
it mean: many hard working howrs to have this amount of
produce properly paecked in improvised boxes, thers being no
packing eases or cartons in those days. In 1890 shey retired,
when three of the vounger penevation took over the business—
Petor, son nf Willinm MeNab, and Chavles and Peter, sons of
Jolin MeMab, who carricd on for p few years. They sold ta
D. A. Scoth, and since then it has changed ownoership goveral
times, namely: My, Bevtrand, J. Mitchell, L. Tucker, and the
presenk owner,

Warmlng Pan

The stene store, afler being vacated by the MeNabs, was
cecapied by Richard Stokes and O V. Michelll later by LI
Pioppey and B Stekes until the death of My, Stokes, aml tl
Mr. Hoppoy earvied on alone till 1807, Me. Hopper's brother
David, was the lask to carry on the mercantile business in the
old Building,  Next it wos used as o blackswith, for o time, by
Joahn MeGrath and finally remodelled and used for a pool-roer
as ot da ab present,

For vears Thomas Gibbons cavried on o Flovr amd Feed store
and later grocovies in the little shop next door to J. Brigeall's

barbar shap. He was succeedud by J. 5, Farmer.

The Grist Al and Lumber ML

The first grist mill was owned by Joshua Wixon, situated a
little east of the village. John C. Michell opernted one fov o

M- Y
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number of yearz kalf 5 mile south of the village, right near his
store, Jomes Hosscll manuged a flour mill and did o flourishing
business just opposite the present school. John Barry had a
saw mill on the west zide of the Brock Hoad, almost opposite
the Michell mill, where thousands of fest of lumber were cut
and dispased of mmu.nl;n He moved to North Claremont late:
in life and his sor-in-law Dan Forsyth continued the business

far some tima,
Taanery. Shoemakers. Foundry.

W, Beal owned o tennery by the little stream on the pro-
perty now owied by Mrs. Thomas Neal, on the west side of the
Ercck Road. Arcother tannery was situnted near the site of
the present hardware stove and was managed by Dougald
Taylor, later by Mr. Pengelly.

A e

Maaly apjulpmenl

In the whely 0% the shaemakers were Dougald Taylor and
John Palmer, Se., followed by John Palmer, Jr., Shackel Palmaor,
William Reith, Magnus ilenderson, Hewderson, J. 5. Farmer, J.
Jobbitt, J. W, Gregp and W, AL Palmer,

The foundry, which =tvod for many years, one block east of
the four corness, was apersied in turn by Jumes Forfar, C. V.

PR T ¢
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Michell, Stephen Powell, Rabert Wapd, and Dodawell & Saun-
ders, when it was eventuaily burned and never rebuilt,

The Maker of Cothns,

Amaonp the wosdworkers were Dan. Gerow, who it is said
made many of the coflins out of cedar for the pioncers departing
this life. Hiz zon George carried on the cavpentering as well
as o pump factory for a number of yeavs. He was suceceded
by Lyman Pilkey who proved to be a suecessful business man.

The Carriage Shop Changes Hands

Witkiam Dowswell owned and operated a earriage shop situ-
ated where Jack Brignall's barvber shop and pool-room now
stands, Georme Bumndy, joiner, cabinetmaker and undertaker,
Lept a furafture store for many years and was succecded later
Ly J. B. Beal

Wonden Spoan Bkibler®

: Oiher Business Men.

Clavemant in the early days was well supplied with black-
emitha, the first one being Thomns Mureay, 1851-18066. Then
came James MoeCausland, Alex. Morgan, Henry Thompson,
Gebrge Gealiow amd hiz son Willlam, F. M, Cooper and James
Harvey (North Clavemont.)

fopring was a paving business In the ecacly life of the
o remidy-mpide clothing being unhenrd of ot that time.  Thao
hnown ones are Wilham Waizon, T. Johnson, F. Farmer, Mr.
spiulding and W, Rawson.

ftobert Bryan was the only tonsoprinl avtist for a number of
years,

The early butehers weve Peter Rumahr and his son Sherman,

Im contracting business weyre William Leaper, James Paterson
and Thomas Paterson, as carpenters, and Jonas Rowson, Richard
Gentle, Albart Powson, George Found, Harry Found, William
Anderzon and Albert Mantle as masons.

e
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Tor & few yenrs Henvy Bundy carried on a printing business
i the Bundy block.

The tinsmithing businees was carvied on by Joshua Bondy for
a number of yvears and then by Alex. Dowswell, Chas. Sargent,

and F. M. Cooper.
The Graham Horses.

This littie story would not De complete without mentioning
ftichard Graham and sons who beld a leading place in the
brewding and handling of horsea. No name is better known
amung the stoek Dreeders than the name Graham, and the
winging of wany prisus, championships and grand champion-
shipe has Drought much vecognition of Clavemont village
thraughout the provinee.
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Today Nel=on Wazepr has become well known for hiz ability
amd good Judgment in importing and handling borses.  Much
eredit is dize him for owning such outstanding horses as were
exhibived by him at C.XE., and Reyal Winter Folr of 1937, and
seeuring six ehampioazhipsa.

George Stokes supplied the vicinliy with vegetables and
plants fvom hian well kept greenhouse.

Thomas Dunn, a Claremont resident, held the position of
Township auditor {or over thirty years as well as doing a grent
denl of conveyancing and was personally known throughout the
township.

—_—1d —
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Ira Powell sold agricultural implements.
Churches—DLaptist.

The Baptist Denomination was the first Lo opganize a
Christian Chureh in Pickering Townszhip, and while records
show as far back ns 1821 that regular services wepe held ac
different places, none were held in the village until cavly In the
20's when mwetings were held at the homes of the people.
Early in the 60's the need for a church was upparent and 1n
1866, Qetoher 28th, the new Baptist chapel was opened for
public warship and is still used by the denomination, Records
show that G. P. Frise was the first pastor engaged ab a salary
of 5250 annually and fSrewood.

The Methodists.

The first Weslevan Methodist servicea in Claremont wera
held in Forfar's planing mill, The first church was bailt in

TINDER ROX,
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1852 on the lot where Mr. MeCullough mow vesides and was
used by the two Methodist congregations after union, titll the
erection of the present chuveh in 1889, Records of the Primitive
Methodism date back to the early 40's when those of that be-
lief of Clavemont and distrier worshipped in a log schoolhouse
at Bothel till 1851 when a church was built on the same lot
where Eethel cemetery still remains. In 1866-07 o Primitive
Vethodist chureh was built in Clavemont just west of the four
corners under the ministry of Mr. Roadhouse and was used until
the union when it was sold to N, Burton who converted it into
a harness shop and dwelling.

The 'reshyvierians.

Those of the Preshyterian faith chose the lot south of the
village where the origisal manse still stands and is occupied
by Mizs Margaret Graham, and buils a frane church under the
leadership of Rev. John Baird. It was used for regular ser-
vices until 1876 when the Lrick church on the east side of the
Brock Boad was constructed, and vsed regulocly until the weion
of the twa Chyistinn bodies of Methodists and Presbyterians in
1620, It was sold io be converted into a Community Hall.
Rev. A. MeLellan was the last minister before union oud was
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chosen to continue his services to the .United congregations
which he did till his untimely death as the result of an accident

in 1932.
Schools

The early pioneers valued education and as soon as possible
established sehools for the instruetion of their ehildren. If
the records are to be trusted, education received some attention
as early az 1825, but nothing definite is known till 1840 when
some teaching was done by several local men in o building near
the corner where the old hotel stood. The first school, made of
logs, was built on the west corner of the Borland farm with
rough planks for seats.  The frst teacher was Patrick Sheriff,
who only taught for a shert time, he being dismissed by the
trustees as having an undesivable character, and Hiram Smith
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MRS, T. GIBRONS,
Claremant's Oldest Resident, aged 03 years.

engaged. The records do not give the salary paid but no doubt
it wos not very remundeative, as n voung lady from Clavemont,
namely Ellen Tracy (Mes. W. H. Michell) was engaged to
tench Glaspow sehool neecording to the following contract and
presumably the salavies at that time would be similar,
“Article of agreement made and coneluded this day of June

N | p—
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1H55 between Miss Elien Tracy, School Mistress of the ane part
and the undersigned on the other part.

Xow the conditions of this agreement is such—the =aid Miss
Tracy agvees to teach o school in Fovsyth's School House on
Loz No. 4, 2nd Concession of Usbridge—for the term of three
months for Six Shillings New Yok currency per Quarter and
Boasd with the scholars of such as wish to have her board with
them and those thar wish to pay for board she will board her
avlf for tive shillings (NYC) pey quarter, she will teach reading,
writing and sewing and keep such order in her school as she
hopes will satisfy her cmployers—the pay will be reqguired the

=Lt 1]

first day of February, 1335,

Tomuhawha Oaken Husket

The New Sechool

In 1856 it was deemed advisabile to bulld o new school inside
the village limit= on lot 36 where Mrs. R Bawson now lives,
The contrace was let to John C. Michell for £200 and was
cavefully adhered to. This school, a ene-roomed building was
vied for o number of wyesrs till the attendance inereasing to
well over a huncred, the need for an nddition was nacessary
and services of un @ssistant engaged. After thirty some years

RISy | R
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of service this sehool was replaced in 1888 by a threc-roomoed
briek building erected on the same site as the present schiool,
The trustees at the time, W. Scott, D. MeNab and Georpe
Caoper, veceived plenty of eriticism for the expense of the un-
used room, but they proved to be far-seeing for jn 1508 & Con-
tinuation School was added with one teacher, Mr, Hicks,

Leaders of the People.

In a zhort time another room was necessary, making it a
Grade B Continuation School.  This has been of great advantage
to the yvounr people. Like most vural disteicts Claremont has
produced many cutstapding leadera in commerce, politics, ede-
cotion, moedicine, religion nand others. A goodly number might
be mentioned but space does net permit. However, there are
three vutstanding men—Dp, Fred Tracy, formerly Professor of

-
Carderi Bwill,

Torento University, and De Donald Rawson, Professor in
Sazkaichewan University and the late Tom Thompson the diss
tingulshed arclst who wes born on the farm now owned by
:L:I'Jlj.,":l:'l Evana.

In 1425 a new school was erected, the former being romlemned
for use by the Departrrent of Bdueation. "The present schoaol
is much larger and more adequate for the inerensed attendance.

Recrealion,

As far back o8 records show there were many forms of amuse-
moent namely—taily-pulls, pavicg boees, singing schoala, dances
in the homes, checlers, quoits and cricket, Fishing was a

S | [



[avorite pastime indulged in by some of the older folk and it
was o cemmen occwrvanee to see “auld” Tommy Thompson,
grandfather of the artist with his old horse and phacton in
company with Peter MeXNnb, Sr. {grandfather of the MeNabs
and wha lived to be 57 wears of age), returning from Frenen-
man's Bay with their day's catch of pike,

The Bands

The feet Band was arganized in 1875 under the leadership of
Guorge Lovimer, conssting of D, Morgan, G, Coates, T. Hopkins,
Robert Ward, Josiali Evans, Ed, Evans, E. Booker, T. Stokes,
i, Evans, Ed, Pugh, F. Farmer, John Gregy and K. J. Howe.

Soime years later a sccond Band was organized under E. W.
Evans Several from the old Bond continued with the younger
members, namely: Jouhn Howe, David Gregg, Thos, Paterson,
John Coates, James SacFarlane and Evans Ward,

Leasher Tall Tankard Baklog Pan

. Soccer,

Purbiapas Soceey has been the most popular game in the village
in the last 67y years. In 1885 the first club was organized
with Joha D, Forsyth as capuin, William Murdock, treasurer,
with Rucben Bawson, W. Michell, Albert Michell, Thos. Johnson,
George Burgess, John Morgan, Jas. Underhill, and Robt, Michell
as other members, In Inter vears Claremont for two Seasons
held the ehampionship for South Ontario.

The Skatine Rinks

Clayemont hasz had two skating rinks, the first one built by
Ira Boyer on the north end of hia ot nnd later o mueh lavger
one bullt by Wm. Leaper, which was popularly patronized by
both pleasure skaters and curlers for n number of years.

_—
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The Canadian I*acific Hailway.

In 1582-83 the Canadian Pacific Rallway Company buill a
line from Toronto east through Claremont and erected a station
one mile north of the Corners, from which the old covered Lus
carried passengers to and {rom the village for over twenty-five
vears., For a number of years Claremont was one of the many
centres from which many carlonds of livestock were shipped na
well as a lurge amount of freight to and from Lthe surrounding
district.

Early Buildings.

Ehortly after the line was built John Barry and Alfred Tracy
built several houses and loter Me. Eavvy built a large Publie
House and store. The store was operated by the late William
Henry, later by R, E. Forsyth, followed by L. Fingold, In 1919
the whole block was destroyed by fire.

Hroad Ase

When the railway was completed two grain elevators, coal
and lime sheds were erected close to the tracks, and operated in
turn by T. E. Pugh, Tobias Caster, J. Gregg, T. Condy, and F,
Loyst

Immediately nortls of the ecorners was the Standard Bank,
later being amalgamated with tie Bang of Commenrce,

The Medical Doclors,

In the last hundred years Clavemont has had several medieal
doctors. Dir. Hall being the first. Drs. Milne, Ferrior, Easte
wood, George Brodie, Kidd, Ralph Brodie and Caldwell. Dr.
Caldwell enlisted for service in the Great Wayr and for a tima
Claremont was without a doctor until 1010 when Dr. T‘nmhn.wn.
moved here and has been practising ever since.

- as
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YVeterinaries.

Dy, C. Brodie, graduate of Ontario Yeterinary College, began
practizing in 1875 and continued for over thirty years when he
moved to Chazy, New York, where he remained until his death
in 1917. Dr. Brewster followed by Dr. Love were the last
practising veterinaries.

Fraternal Socielics

There have been severnl lodges, namely: Free Mason, Ancient
Drder of Workmen, Independent Order of Foresters, Royal
Templars, Claremont Circle and Independent Order of Odd-
fellows.

The Public Library

Cleremont has had a Public Library for nearly half a century,
the first 1he Mechanies' Institute in the building now known as
Lewis’ Boke Shop. Some years later the books were moved

QOven far Hoking Feead in Log Fire Dush Churn

acroee (ke street into & room in the Bundy block under the name
of the Public Library Association, and still carried on under
the rame name in the new combined buflding of Fire Hall and
Publie Library. Through the generosity of Biss H. Walker,
{who served as librarian for twenty-five years) in the giving of
the lot for the erectio: of the new building, Claremont has an
institution of good reputation, and much interest is shown in

V-



CLAREMONT—PAST AND PRESENT

providing the subseribers with good reading. The library is one
of the valuable nsseta of the community to-day.

Claremont Becomes a Police Village,

In 1908 Claremont desiring the right of management of its
ewn local taxation, a by-law was passed by the County Couneil
making it & Police Village. This arouzed considerable interest
for a time, The first trustees elected were Robert Ward,
J. 8. Farmer and G, M, Forayth.

Introduction of Hydro.

In 1927 during the reeveship of G. M. Forsyth, Claremont
was desirous of securing Hydro. After many weeks or perhaps
mantha of hard work to secure the required number of signed
contracts the line was finally boilt and in October of that wear
the current was turned on much to the delight of everyone.

The Bakelite Factory,

Claremont for some time has had a valuable ssset in the
small Bakelite factory. This azset was made poszsible by the
energetic and business ability of . G, Melntyre, who remaodelled
an ald building on hiz properiy and has enlarged the plant to
its present usefulness. In the past few years ke has provided
empoyment for a number of men as well as girls,

[ast fall, 1937, Mr. McIntyre sold the business to Col. E.
Phillips, of Oshawa, who bullt the splendid new Bakelite mould-
ing plant under the name of H. G. Melntyre Limited, retaining
Mr. Melntyre as manager and giving employment to a much
lavger number of people.

The Reereation Ground

In 1922 the village purchased five acres of land for o Re-
creation Ground to be known as Clavemont Memorial Park. A
few years later after the unlon of the Presbyterian and Metho-
dist churches, the Presbyterian church was purchased by the
Park Board and remodelled for a Community Hall, One of the
tircless workers on the Board and presemt chaivman iz D N
Tomlinsen, who has not only followed his profession successful-
ly, but had always been interested and given his loyal support
to everything that is beneficial to the village. It iz through

O
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hie wfforts along with the seevetary, A. Pretty, and other mem-
bevs of the Iloard, that thiz Centennial celebration is being
sponsared. The Community and Masonie Halls are at the dis-
posal of the public for all entertiinments and socinl events, in-

ciuding badminton.
The Bowling Greem.

Another beauty #potr is the attractive bowling green where

rany hl'I-FIl_\f hours are spant.

Claremont Tao-day

Grocers—C. A, Overland, Ed. Lewis, H. Boose, A. W. Wilkinson,

H. C. Brooks, Mys. G. Connoe,

ranerice—Ed. Lewis, Mrs, G. Connor.
Garvage und Hardware—C, A, Cooper,
Barbers—H. Povter, J. Brigrall.
Beauty Parlours—Mrs. A, Pretty, Mrs, J. Mundell,
ool Room—A, Brignall, A. Mole.
FPast Otlice and Statlonery—A, Pretzy.
Woodworking Shop—T. Paterson,
lacksmith—L. Lye¢ & Son.
Iagglat—L, Douglos.
Creamery—H. Davies (successor to F. Evans.)
Paintdrs and Decorntors=—E. Shick, J, Briscoe,
Canning Facteries=—F. Loyst, W, Symes.
Greenbouse—T, Lenson,
Elevator—(flour, feed, lime, coal, ete.), J. Furr.
Hovge Breeder and Importer—N, Wagg.
Carpenters—R. Lynn, R, Beelby, W. Thompson.
Apiarists—W, Birzett and A. Mantle,
Opuician—R. E. Forsvth.
Cierk of 3nd Division Court—Thomas Gregg.
rutcher—B. Kilpatirick
Fruits and Vegetables—H. Boose.
Manager of Bank of Commcrce—L. Hooey,
Dentist—Dr. X. Smith.

R |

e



With teiling hands and simple tools

Cur grandsives hewed a wilderness of trees,
That smiles to-day with fields of green,
Dotted with happy homes,

Where comiort veigns,

And love-lit eyes look out

Upon s world of wonder.

That was the gift our fathers left,

A gify of industry and zacrifice.

To us the eall as come—

What =zhall we do with this

Our heritage of power and great delight?
Shall we to fuiure sons hand on

A vicher, nobler, eleaner world?

Or shall we prodigal our wealth,

And, selfish, throw our tools away

While greed and erime control ?

Great is the wift, and great
The field of opportunity.

NOTE—This juem snd the picncer Hustieations were kindly loaned
by 1Be muthar of “0On the Bhores of Beugeog™
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Houseiurnishings—>Mrs, M. Chandler.

WMinistera—Rev. J. Glover (United), Rev. P. D. Augustine
(Baptist).

Lawyer—E. FelZer.

Medical Doctor—Dr. N. ', Tomlinson.

Librarian—2Mra. T. Gregg.

Police Trustees—i. MeCullough, W. Thompson, A. Pretty.

fantinuation Sehool Teachers—O. Clark (Prineipal); M. Dick.
gon | Assistant.)

Pahlic Sehool Teachers—E. Hosie (Prineipal); L. Linton (Asst)

C, PR, Agent—I. Dopping.

Home Telephone—A, Pretty.

Bethesda and Stoufville Telephone—E. Shirk.

Well Remembered Names

We would like to mention a fow family names well remem-
bered in the history of the village, such as, Bell, Bennett,
Brown, Evans, F‘amie Gibhons, Gibson, Gostick, Graham,
Grepg, Cooper, Hamilion, Hubbard, MacFarlane, Middleton,
Morpan Pilkey, Palmer, Pugh, Richardson, Scott, Strathearn,
}'mﬁ:,th AlaeDonald, Ward and Wixon. Such splendid types of
pioneers whao have bequenthed to us our homes and such splen-
did memorials as our schools, churches, are not to be forgoetien
iII.I].L.. ng preater re;:.'a-ex..l: can we pay to them than to endeavour
ta Ll]] hold their teachings and keep our homes godly.

p
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